
December 13, 2021 Village Board Meeting Minutes 

VILLAGE OF WALWORTH 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

Monday, December 13, 2021, 6:00 pm 
 

Call to Order: President Czaja called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 

 

Roll Call: Present: President Louise Czaja, Trustees Matt Tanner, Kristi Reierson, Bob Ball, Pat McMahon, 

Joan Sallee, Dan Mizialko 

Also Present: Public Works Operations Manager Mat Nickels, Police Chief Ryan Milligan, 

Bradley Schultz, Village Engineer Mark Kolczaski, Resident Kelly Freeman, Clerk/Treasurer 

Lisa Rogers, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Kellie Thelen 

 

Approval of Minutes – Minutes need to be reviewed prior to Board approval. 

 

Comments from Citizen Present:  Any item presented to the Village Board by a citizen will be heard and 

may be placed on the next regular meeting’s agenda. – Kelly Freeman announced that the park looks 

wonderful and that Public Works did a great job on it. 

 

November Financial Reports – Village & Water/ Sewer – President Czaja advised that the Finance 

Committee has reviewed the reports. 

 

November/December 2021 Village and Water/Sewer Payables including Additions – A McMahon/Ball 

motion to approve the Village and Water/Sewer payables including additions, carried unanimously. 

 

Discussion, Consideration and Action on the following: 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Appointment of Agent to Department of Employee Trust Funds – Clerk/Treasurer Rogers indicated that the 

Agent from the Village for the Department of Employer Trust Funds needs to be updated.  A Czaja/McMahon 

motion to appoint Clerk/Treasurer Lisa Rogers as the Agent and Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Kellie Thelen as the 

alternate agent, carried unanimously. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION REPORTS: 

FINANCE 

2020 Audit available – Official presentation by Paul Frantz, Baker Tilly, Committee-of-Whole 

Tues.1/4/2022, 6:00 pm. – Czaja advised that Paul Frantz was not available for this meeting, but he is available 

on January 4, 2022 at 6:00pm for a presentation of the 2020 audit report. 

 

Restructure existing debt & fire truck purchase – Presentation by Jon Cameron, Ehlers, Inc., 

Committee-of-Whole Tues.1/4/2022, 6:00 pm. – Czaja advised that Jon Cameron is available to present the 

bond issue and discuss the restructure of existing debt and the purchase of the fire truck on January 4, 2022 at 

6:00pm. 

 

Recommendation to increase hourly pay, Maria Alfano, to $17.85/hr. retroactive to date of hire 11/02/21. 

– Czaja advised that the finance committee has made the recommendation to increase the hourly rate of pay for 

Maria Alfano after discussion and review of the hiring process, staffing and current part time wages.  A 

Czaja/Reierson motion to increase the hourly rate of pay for Maria Alfano to $17.85/hour retroactive to the date 

of hire, 11/02/2021; motion carried with one opposition. 



December 13, 2021 Village Board Meeting Minutes 

 

PUBLIC WORKS 

Public Works Operation Manager Report: 

Delivery/payment International Truck. – Mat Nickels indicated that he is waiting on an email from 

Clerk/Treasurer Lisa Rogers with confirmation that the funds are in the account.  Clerk/Treasurer Rogers 

indicated that the funds should be available within the next couple of days.  Nickels advised that he has spoken 

with the dealer and the truck is still being held for the Village.  

 

Snow removal on sidewalks – Recommendation to contract with Mat Hansen – McMahon advised that the 

Public Works recommendation was to continue to contract with Mat Hansen for snow removal on sidewalks 

within the Village and Hansen has to come up with a contract.  McMahon mentioned that the Village has used 

him, and Hansen is aware of the system and what has to be done.  Sallee questioned if there have been any other 

proposals received for snow removal on sidewalks.  McMahon advised that he is unaware of any estimates 

received.  Sallee asked if the Village posted anything regarding proposals for snow removal; Clerk/Treasurer 

Rogers indicated that she is unaware of any posting.  A McMahon/Ball motion to contract with Mat Hansen for 

snow removal on sidewalks, carried unanimously.  Nickels indicated that having a backup contract is more of a 

safety issue for his department as this will allow Public Works staff to focus on main breaks or making sure 

roads are cleared. 

 

Storm Water: Randolph Street proposal:  Engineer review – McMahon advised that the Village has 

received a preliminary bid from Odling Construction, but that the Village intends to wait closer until Spring and 

get at least two more bids for the construction on Randolph Street.  Czaja advised that it was recommended to 

refer the proposal to the Village Engineer to see if it would be a feasible project.  A McMahon/Sallee motion to 

refer the proposal from Odling Construction to the Village Engineer for review, carried unanimously. 

 

Retention Ponds: Oak Knolls: Engineer’s maintenance plan. Schedule. – Village Engineer, Mark Kolczaski 

advised that Baxter & Woodman has put together a maintenance plan which includes mowing the retention 

pond at Oak Knolls twice a year, and repair and improvements was another subject that was included, but is 

more costly to the Village.   Czaja questioned if dredging the bottom and raising the berm was part of the 

maintenance to which Nickels responded that dredging would only be necessary if the area was holding water.  

Kolczaski advised that his team looked at the pond itself and the overall drainage system and it is a phased 

approach to the issue.  The first phase is raising the berm for more volume and protection, but that this does not 

solve the problem of the outlet, as there is no outlet for the water to go other than what soaks into the ground, 

therefore it is important to maintain the space for now, which could include clearing out the bottom, mowing, 

and keeping trees cut.  The other project is to improve the overall pond for long term, which is more costly.  

Czaja and McMahon mentioned that they recall a 5-year plan that including dredging the pond every 5 years, 

however, Kolczaski advised that if it is holding water, you have to look at why, which may include dredging the 

bottom.  Sallee questioned if dredging is not a preventative measure, but rather something to do on an as needed 

basis.  Kolczaski advised that there is a preventative maintenance plan that was provided to the Village with the 

recommendations to keep the pond operating at the highest efficiency.   

 

Windmill Prairie:  financing. – McMahon mentioned that the use of TIF funds did not seem realistic for the 

Windmill Prairie project.  Czaja mentioned that the Village attorney has indicated that it is an option, and it 

requires Board action.  Czaja advised that the financing has to be bid out and the project is over $25,000.00.   

 

Parks: 

Devil’s Lane Park revision. – Czaja advised that when Ehlers is at the meeting on January 4, 2022, she is 

going to inquire about the opinion of using Park Impact Fees for this park to do a revision.  Czaja mentioned 

that the Impact Fees are going to have to be paid back if the Village does not use them by a certain date. 

 

Rotary Park:  winter use. – McMahon mentioned that there will be a small pond for skating and other than 

that, there will be roller blades on the rink. 



December 13, 2021 Village Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Streets: 

Wood St.:  Schedule bidding – Nickels advised that the Public Works Department cannot do anything until the 

LIRP funds are awarded to the Village and there is a sunset date of 6 years for the funds to be used.  Nickels 

advised that he foresees being able to begin the project in April.  The Village cannot advertise for bids until 

after receiving the agreement for the LIRP funds, which should be around March 2022. 

 

Water Utility:  

ACTION:  RECOMMENDATION ON BAXTER & WOODMAN PROPOSAL / DESKTOP 

CORROSION CONTROL REPORT. – Village Engineer Kolczaski advised that the Village received a letter 

from the DNR with concerns about the water system and that the DNR needs additional information collected 

from the Village regarding the system.  Kolczaski advised that the timeline would be to get with the Village in 

January, get the study done this Spring, meet with the DNR this Summer and wrap it up early 2023.  Czaja 

advised that the proposed amount of the Desktop Report was $20,000.00.  A McMahon/Ball motion to continue 

with the Desktop Corrosion Control Report with Baxter & Woodman.  Sallee questioned if the previous testing 

of the water system is not usable, Kolczaski advised that the DNR is asking for more information on top of what 

has already been collected.  Nickels advised that he cannot collect samples until July-September hence why the 

long time frame of the report being completed.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

ACTION: RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE BRADLEY J. SCHULTZ AS PUBLIC WORKS 

EMPLOYEE AT STARTING RATE OF PAY, SUBJECT TO DRUG AND ALCOHOL TEST. – Bradley 

Schultz advised that he has received his CDL license.  A McMahon/Sallee motion to hire Bradley J. Schultz as 

a Public Works Employee at starting rate of pay of $20/hour, subject to drug and alcohol test, carried 

unanimously. 

 

GENERAL SERVICES 

Fire/Rescue 

By-laws – Reierson advised that the Fire/Rescue is still working on the By-laws.  Reierson advised that 

Fire/Rescue has been hiring candidates.  Reierson advised that there was an issue with Engine 5 not regulating 

water pressure so it has been taken out of service.  Milligan advised that the engine can be used for tools, but 

cannot be used for water. 

 

Police 

Nalox Box installation. – Reierson advised that the Nalox Box is equip with overdose response tools and 

provided by the Walworth County Drug and Alcohol Coalition at no cost to the Village.  A representative is 

available to present this information to the Board.  A Reierson/McMahon motion to invite representative to next 

Board Meeting to present to the Board, carried unanimously. 

 

Sponsorship of Caleb Broege/part-time patrol – Reierson advised that the Police Department has decided to 

sponsor Mr. Broege through the Police Academy starting January 2022.  Milligan advised that when a candidate 

is sponsored, the Wisconsin Department of Justice covers the cost and the only expenses the Village would 

incur would be travel and food, which would come out of the Police Department’s part-time budget.  Milligan 

advised that if Broege did not pass or dropped out of the academy, the Village would have to pay $3,000.00, 

which would still come out of the part-time budget.  Milligan advised that Broege would be sworn in as a part-

time officer, and that he would not be able to make any arrests.  The academy is in Kenosha and the Lieutenant 

is an instructor at the academy.  Milligan advised that there is a 1-year part-time commitment that comes with 

the sponsorship, which would begin upon graduation from the academy.  Milligan advised that he has since 

been contacted by two others who wish to have the Village sponsor them, but he is going to try this one first to 

see how it goes.  Milligan advised that the academy is four months and it is equivalent to a full-time job, so it 

has been discussed and budgeted to pay Broege part-time wages while he attends the academy. 

 

Court – Reierson advised that the court forfeitures for the month of November were $6,847.10. 



December 13, 2021 Village Board Meeting Minutes 

 

ACTION:  RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE OPERATOR’S LICENSE: Hallie Wozniewski from 

Siemers Cruise Inn. – Reierson advised that Hallie Wozniewski has passed the background check.  A 

Reierson/Ball motion to approve the Operator’s License for Hallie Wozniewski from Siemers Cruise Inn, 

carried unanimously. 

 

Ordinances – Reierson advised that a deadline has been set of March 2022 to get an ordinance prepared for the 

upcoming season of food trucks and such. 

 

COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES 

PLAN COMMISSION 

Forget-Me-Not Flower Market:  Referred to Building Inspector/Planner. – Czaja advised that Forget-Me-

Not would like to add on to the back of the building to house another cooler and that the business also might 

want to have short term rentals in there, which might require a conditional use permit. 

 

Hamlin St. & walking Path:  Request to abandon/Referred to Planner. – Czaja advised that the Planner has 

gotten back with recommendations for this project.  The Plan Commission is to meet next week. 

 

Resignation:  Brad Cousins. – Czaja advised that Brad Cousins had surgery and is no longer interested in 

being on the planning committee.  A Czaja/Ball motion to accept the resignation of Brad Cousins.  Czaja 

advised that there are two open positions for the planning committee.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

LIBRARY BOARD 

Reierson advised that the library received 30 science kits from the Wisconsin Science Festival.  Reierson also 

reported that Bobbi Sorrentino attended the Wisconsin Library Association in Green Bay.  Reierson also 

reported that story time has started on Fridays at 10am. 

 

New Employees – Reierson reported that there are two new employees at the Library – Dawn Anterberry and 

Heather Nicholson. 

 

Reierson also reported that Bobbi Sorrentino applied for grants for a solar charging station and one for creating 

computer classes for training with laptops.  

 

FWWPCC 

Report FWWPCC 11/09/21 – Approval of 15 amendment to IGA & 9th Amendment to Kikkoman 

contract. – Czaja advised that these documents have been signed. 

 

Replacement fund for Medica-R-15 with boost Pump. $5,913.67. 

 

EMERGENCY GOVERNMENT 

Sallee advised that Emergency Government Committee will be meeting soon.  

 

A Sallee/Tanner motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:57pm, carried unanimously. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Lisa Rogers, Clerk Treasurer 


